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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CASA GRANDE SMART VAI_IJE
HOMES PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31.
2023 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement ofChanges in Equity for the year
then ended. and notes to the Ind AS hnancial statements, including a surnmarv of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the inlormation required by the Companies Act, 201 3 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accountinB
standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as arnended, and accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, ofthe state
of affhirs of the Companl'as at March 3l'1 2023. its Profit including other comprehensive income. irs
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the lnd AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements'
section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the'Code ofEthics' issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules thereunder.
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate ro
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key' Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were olmost significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit ol the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting ofKey audit matters as per SA 701 is not applicable to the company as i
company.
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lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Cornpany's Board of Directors is responsible lbr the other information. The other inlbmtation
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not inolude the Ind AS linancial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do no1

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent rvith
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. Il based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company lor the year ended March 31.2022. and the
transition date opening balance sheet as of April 1.2021. is included in these Ind AS financial
statements. These statements are based on the financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. We audited the financial statements lor the years

ended March 31.2022, and March 31,2021, and issued an unmodified opinion on those audited
tinancial statements. These financial statements have been restated to comply with Ind AS, and we havc
audited the adjustments to the said comparative financial information for the difference in Accounting
Principles adopted by the Company upon transitioning to Ind AS.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Management's Responsibility for the lnd AS Financial Statements

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 201 3 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view ofthe financial position, financial performance and cash flows ofthe Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounling

standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with rule 3 of the Companies (lndian

Accounting Standards) Rules,20l5 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policiesl making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance

of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentati

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. w
on lnal't c ial

rduet fiaud

con

or error

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements. management is responsible lor asses thc Compan)"'s

andability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable. mafters related to

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identi! and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstalement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fbrgery, intentional omissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofthe Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concem basis olaccounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate. to modif, our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ol the Ind AS financial statements.

including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and evenls in a manner that achieves lair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that. ln Viduallv 11.)

aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowled ble user ol the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and q

(i) planning the scope ofour audit work and in evaluating the results ofour work;
the effect olany identified misstatements in the financial statements.

tive factors in
(ii) to evaluate



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit lindings. including any significant deficiencies in
intemal control that we identifu during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Govemment of lndia in terms of sub-section ( I I ) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 201 3. we
enclose in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe said
Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) ofthe Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination ofthose books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Proflt and I-oss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Stalement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Repo( are in agreement with the books ofaccount;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 201 5. as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received fronr the directors as on March 31.2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on March 3 I .

2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A" to this reportl Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
company's intemal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) ofthe
Act. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the limit
prescribed by section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable
to a private limited company.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ccordance rvith
lo the best 01-

L The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its-Snancial
position.
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i. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best olits knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

i. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind offunds) by the company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entities 'Intermediaries', with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate
Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

ii. No funds have been received by the company from any person or entity. including
foreign entities 'Funding Parties'. with the understanding. whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly. lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee.
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

I Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice thal has

caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain
any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly
reporting on the compliance with section 123 olthe Companies Act,2013 is not applicable
lbr the year under consideration.

vi As proviso to Rule 3(l) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4 (as amended), which
provides lor books ofaccount to have the leature ofaudit trail, edit log and related matters
in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with
effect from financial year beginning April l. 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule
ll olthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 (as amended), is currently not
applicable.

For ABCD & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0l 641 55

AA !
V inod R, Parlner
Membership No: 214143

Place: Chennai
Date: 09-08-2023
UDIN: 2321 4l43BHAOXR6955
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section ofour
report to the members of CASA GRANDE SMART VALUE HOMES PRIVATE LIMITED of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 ofSection 143 ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act")
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CASA GRANDE SMART
VALUE HOMES PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as ol March 31,2023, in conjunction with our
audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate intemal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds

and errors. the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable
financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) ofthe Companies
Act. 201 3. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was

established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their
operating eflectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these lnd AS

financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness olintemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgement. including the assessment olthe risks ol material misstatement of the

llnancial statements. whether due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate firovide a sis lor
our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial reporting with re nce to these Ind AS

l'inancial statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Referen inancial
Statements
A Company's intemal flnancial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial

chennar - 14 /:



statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that

(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets ofthe company.

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors ofthe company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition.
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statements
Because ofthe inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of coltusion or improper management override
ofcontrols, malerial misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
ofany evaluation ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial conlrol over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because ofchanges
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intemal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such intemal financial controls over

financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at

March 31. 2023. based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India

For ABCD & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm No:0164155

fr,a c

YinodR. Partner
Membership No:
Place: Chennai
Date: 09-08-2023

2t4143

UDIN: 232l4l43BHAOXR6955
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Annexure *B" to the Independent Auditor's Report

( Ret'erred to in paragraph I under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report to the members of CASA GRANDE SMART VALUE HOMES PRIVATE LIMITED of even
date)

Fixed assets:

a) (A) In our opinion and according to the infbrmation and explanations given to us, the

Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the

management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us

and as examined by us. no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined b.v-.

us, we report that, the Company has no immovable prope(ies of land and building held

as Property, plant and equipment or Investment Property as at the balance sheet date.

Hence reporting under Clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us. the company has not revalued

its property, plant and equipment during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanations fumished to us and as represented by the

management, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company

for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act.
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988

(45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question ofour commenting

on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements

does not arise.

2. lnventories:

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our

opinion. the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is

appropriate and no discrepancies of l07o or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed on such verification.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore

mpees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets at any point of time during the year

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, thc Company

has made loans in the nature of unsecured loans to companies and imited Liab itv

Partnership. The aggregate amount oftransaction during the year and bal ding

3

o

at the balance sheet date with respect to loan to holding company. subsidiary-eempanies

and fellow subsidiary companies is mentioned in the following table.



Guarantees
Advances in

naturc of loans

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

Subsidiaries
Holding company

Associates

Fellow subsidiaries

Others

600.00

2l 00.00

664.01

104.98

0.29

Balance outstanding as at the balance sheet date in
respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries

- Holding company

- Associates/JointVentures
- Fellow subsidiaries
- Others

600.00

2100.00

1337.92

14.68

0.53

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided. security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
company's interest.

c) The terms of arrangement do not stipulate any repaymenl schedule and the loans are
repayable on demand with interest.

d) ln the absence of stipulated schedule ol repayment ofprincipal and payment of interest, we
are unable to comment as to whether there is anv amount which is overdue for more than 90
days.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has
granted the loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment aggregating to Rs.769.28 (in lakhs) (100% to
the total loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during the year). The aggregate of
loans granted to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act.
2013 is Rs. 769.28 (in lakhs)

f) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are

repayable on demand, no question of overdue amounts will arise in respect of the loans
granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 ofthe Act.

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans.

investments, guarantees and security, the Compan
185 and section 186 of the Companies Act.20l3.

y has complied with the provisio

5. The Company has not accepled any deposits liom thc public and hence the direct es issued by' the

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions ofSections 73 to 76 or any other relevant visions ofthe

trons

Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,20l5 regarding to the ted



from the public are not applicable.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Govemment for the maintenance ofcost records under section 148 ofthe Act.
and are of the opinion that prima facie. the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same.

7. In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination
of the books of account, and records, the Company has generally been regular [except for
the dues mentioned below in the clause (b) of para (vii) in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Income-Tax, Good and Service tax (GST). Cess and any other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities.

b) Undisputed amounts payable in arears as on 3lstMarch 2023 for a period olmore than six
months from the date they payable are given below:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount
(Rs. in

millions)

Period of Default

Central Goods and
Services Act.2017

Interest on GST Pavable 5.09 FY 202t-22

Central Goods and
Services Act- 201 7

Interest on GST Payable 0.89
April2022 to August

2022

obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which they were a

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
on short term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/ioint-ventures
paragraphs 3 (ix) (f) ofthe Order are not applicable.

funds raised
(

us.

accordingly.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
Good and Service tax (GST) outstanding on account of any dispute.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. there are no
transactions not recorded in the books ofaccount that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, l96l (43 of I 961 ).

9.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment ofdues to banks or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The Inter Corporate Borrowings are
repayable on demand and tenns and conditions for payment of interest thereon have not
been stipulated. According to the information and explanations given to us, such loans and
interest thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the relevant financial year.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term lopns

4rennai
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a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way ofan initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause(x)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Compan)'
has not made any prelerential allotment or private placement ol shares or conve(ible
debentures (fully, partially. or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly.
paragraph 3 (x) (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

ll.
a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us.

no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clause(xi)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) No report under subsection (12) ofsection 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule l3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2Ol4 with
the central govemment, during the and up to the date of this repo(.

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us.
no whistle-blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore. the provisions ofclause(xii) olthe Order are not
applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions u'ith
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

14.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an intemal audit system, commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) The reports of the intemal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us, as part of
our audit procedures.

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of section 192 and clause(xv) ofthe Order are not
applicable to the Company.

t6.

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly. the provisions of clause(xvi) (a) and (b)

ofthe Order are not applicable

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to u Cort't

is not a Core lnvestment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other c panies in the

Croup as a CIC. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (d) of the of
applicable.

17. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.48.87 (in milliors) in the financial yearand RrJ48.09
(in Millions) in the immediately preceding financial year.

Order are not

D&



18. There has been no resignation ofthe statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly. clause(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

19. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities. other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the board of
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is capable ol meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period ofone year from the balance sheet date. We. however, stale that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our repo(ing
is based on facts up to the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance

that all liabilities fatling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section '135 of the
Companies act is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause3(xx)(a) and (b)
olthe order is not applicable for the year.

2l . The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect ofthe said clause has been included in this report.

For ABCD & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0164155

C

RN 016415S

Vinod R

Partner

Menrbership No:21414

Ac
Place: Chennai
Date:09-08-2023
UDIN: 232 l4 I 43BHAOXR6955

N
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Casa Grande Smart Value Hornes Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 3l March 2023

unless otherwise stated)(All amounts are in Millions,
As at As at

31 March 2023 3l March 2022
As at

Notes 0l April 2021
Particulars
Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equiPment

Financial assets

Other financial assets

Deferred tax asse6 (net)

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents

Investments

Loans

Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equity share caPital

Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Bonowings

Other fi nancial liabilities

Other non-cunent liabilities

320.64 224.54

5,205.58 3,635.06 l,8l 1.60

3 8.29

30.72

188.85

6.57

21.49

42.67
6

8

69.89

242.46
70.73

9

l0
ll
t2

4

5

6

7

143.81

12t.46

2.39

107.41

83.01

42.06

58.27

5.31

878.31

55r.07
3.73

53.07

1,353.15

284.81

42.26

868.54

l5l .68

1 1.78

7,153.46 4,857.48 3,403.48

7 74.10

0.10

082.02 74.21

0. l0
3.78)

5

l4
l5 6.65)

0.10
(8.20)( (

6.

1,388.55

8.10 68

l6
t7
t8

1,023.84

22.00

3,472.75

1,909.00

1,233.91

1,388.s5 112.91

4.97



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at As at

Notes 3l March 2023 3l March 2022
As at

01 April 2021

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0164155

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20I6PTCI 10721

l6 0.05

81.57

172.10

50.54

5,735.07

52.77

6,092.r0

12.95

t.l5
154.12

124.58

I 16.17

t62.56

571.53

I1.87

l.l4
89.05

76.44

I13.04

43.41

334.95

l9
l9
t7
l8
l3

Total liabilities 7,480.65 5,090.12 3,477.89

Total equity and liabilities 7,474.10 5,082.U 3,474.4

Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements l-2

d-A (

Vinod R
Partner

Membership Number : 21 41 43

Place : Chennai
Date : 09.08.2023

nMN
Director
DIN:00793551

Place : Chennai
Date : 09.08.2023

vsvl

q
m

s

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
Trade payables

Dues to micro small and medium enterprises

Dues to others

Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Liabilities for cunent tax (net)

,lI +,1,
' (,'*-'
Y Gautam Agrrwaal

'. Director
DN:03064660

."1''\
o\%q\''
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Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Statement ofProfit and Loss for the year ended 31 March,2023
(AIl amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes

For the year ended

31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022
Income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Other income

Total income

20

2t
32.51

3.01

12.7 3

21.08

35.52 33.8r

Expenses

Cost of raw materials, components and stores consumed

Construction activity expenses

(lncrease/ decrease in stock offlats, land stock and work-in-
progress and traded goods

Employee benefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

ProfiU(loss) before tax
(l) Current tax
(2) Defened tax charge(credit)
lncome tax expense

ProfiU(loss) for the year

Earnings per share

Basic, computed on the basis of profit for the year (ln {)

Diluted, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (ln {)

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0l64l55

Vinod R
Partner

155

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
CIN : U74 20l6PTC I 10721

472.50

I,028.42

( 1,s01.16)

285.21

t,537.27

(t,822.49)

7.28

3.t9
16.38

3.25

2.49

4.76

26.61 10.49

23.32

t73.90
(146.16)

27.74

28

28

)

29

Arun MN
Director
DIN: 00793551

Place : Chennai

Date : 09.08.2023

.@

1.5s

155

tf

4.42

(442)

(442)

Gautam Agarwaal
Director
DN: 03064660

9)

s

c

3

H0r,e

Membership Number : 2I4f 43

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

22

23

24

25

26

27

8.91

60.97

(s3.61)

7.36

:)

(

\
14

,N 0

-.nnai-
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Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise slated)

a. Equity share capital:

Equity shares of t l0 each

Numbers Amount
Equity shares of { l0 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 0l April 2021
Issue ofshare capital
As at 3l March 2022

Equity shares of { l0 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 0l April 2022
Issue ofshare capital

As at 3l March 2023

b. Other equity

10.000 ________0J0-

10,000 0.l0

10,000 0. l0

10.000 ____________-_-iJg

Relained earnings Total

As at 0l April 2021

Profit for the period

As at 3l March 2022

As at 0l April 2022

Profit for the period

As at 31 March 2023

As per our report of even date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0l64l5S

_______________(@ _______________rc@

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20l6PTCI10721

(3.78)

(4.42)
(3.78)

(4.42)
(8.20) (8.20)

(8.20)

1.55

d.d {r*
Vinod R
Partner

Membenhip Number : 21 41 43

Place : Chennai

Date : 09.08.2023

Arun MN
Director

DIN:00793551

Place : Chennai

Date : 09.08.2023

Gautam Agarwaal
Director
DIN:03064660
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Crsa Grande Smart Value Homes Privale Limited
Statemenl of Cash Flows for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All anounts are in Millions, unless otherwise slated)

As st
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Operating actiYiti€s
Profit/(loss) before tax

Adjustments lo rcconcile prcJit belorc lox to net cosh tlows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Finance income

Dividend income

Finance costs

lYo*ing cspltal qdj ust me nb :
(Inffease)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
(lncrease/decrease in other financial assets

(lncrease/decrease in other current assets

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase(decrease) in other financial liability
Increase(decrease) in other cunent liability
Crsb generated from operating tctivities
Income tax (paid)/refirnded

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment

Purchase of fi nancial instruments

Loan given to related parties

Movement in bank deposits (maturity ofmore than 3 months)
Dividend lncome

Interest receiYed

Net cash flows from(used in) investing activities

Finsncing sctiYities
Interest paid

Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayment oflong term bonowings
Proceeds/(repayment) fiom short term borrowings
Net cash flows from(used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Crsh and cssh €quivel€nts st year €nd

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 016415S

( 1s3.30) (4?.'t4)

473.40 491.88

(6.51) (0.8e)

878.3 r

(3t7.47)
5.37

5.99

1.52
(421. t lr 512.43

3.19
(204.73)

(36.40)
(t,s70.s2)

(3e.e7)
(30.48)

98.40

16.68

2,t46.15

23.32

2.49
(t4e.28)

(5.ee)

2t7.87

(65.35)

(t,823.46)
(e.42)

41.29

65.08

I .13

2,241.94

626.70 539.62

(484.61)

(2.3e)

72.40

(36s.65)

t,579.63
(t,2t4.92)

(12.e0)

(r3.E4) (r,039.e7)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa G rlde Smart Value Homes Private Limited
CIN : U74 0r6PTCl10721

38.45

83.01

121.46

24.74

58.27

83.0t

l,^@r
V 

""r,r, 
Aqsrwaat\ 

Director
DIN: 03064660

Vinod R
Partner

Membership Number

Antn MN
Director
DIN: 00793551>"nr/

fs
l--t

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023
Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

I FsvS

Particulars

8.91

235.47

(155.89)

1,015.73
(l,e00.8e)

1.08

fr.a
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Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

l.Corporate information
Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on 2 June, 2016 under the provisions of
the Companies Act applicable in lndia ("Act"). The registered oflice is located at 5th Floor, NPL Devi, New no lll,
L.B.Road, Thiruvanmiyrr, Chennai 60004 l.
The Company is engaged primarily in the business of real estate constructions, development and other related activities in
India.
The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution ofthe directors on 09 August,2023.

2.Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
ln accordance with the notification issued by the MCA, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)
specified under section 133 ofthe Act, read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
presentation requirements of Division Il ofSchedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (lnd AS compliant Schedule III).

The standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented in accordance with lnd AS. The standalone
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are

measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Upto 3l March 2022, the
Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with the previous GAAP, which includes the standards notified
under the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 and other related provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013. These are

the company's first Ind AS financial statements. The statutory date oftransition to Ind AS is I st April, 2021.

2.2 Summary ofother significant accounting policies

(a) Use ofestimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofrevenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure ofcontingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is
recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cunent/ non-current classification.

An assel is treated as cunent when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setlle a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to financial statem€nts for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless olherwise staled)

A liability is cunent when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash

equivalents. The operating cycle ofthe Company's real estate operations varies from project to project depending on the size

of the project, type of development, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets and

liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle ofthe project. All other assets and liabilities
have been classified into current and noncurrent based on a period of twelve months.

Defened tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities

(c) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost

comprises purchase price, import duties, non-refundable taxes, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are

deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is

depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts ofplant and equipment are

required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a

replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as

incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the

future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and

equipment, including day+o-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost ofreplacing parts, are charged to the statement

ofprofit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition ofproperty, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as

capital advances under other non-current assets.

An item ofproperty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when

no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset

(calculated as the diflerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is

capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect

expenditure (including bonowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to the construction

activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Costs ofassets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on written down value method using the following useful lives estimated by the management,

which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except certain categories ofassets whose

useful life is estimated by the management based on planned usage and technical evaluation thereon:

Assets
Buildings 60
Temporary Structures 3

Fumiture & Fittings l0
Plant&Machinery-Civil \2-15
OfIice Equipment 5

Vehicles 8-t0
Computers 3

Servers and network 6

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible

assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized using written down value method over a period of three

years, which is estimated by the management to be the useful life ofthe asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortiz.tion of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is

derecognized.

(f) Investment prop€rty
The Property that is held for long term rental yield or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the

Company is classified as an lnvestment Property. lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost ofreplacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects ifthe recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts ofthe investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates

them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as

incurred.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is

capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect

expenditure (including borrowing costs) incuned during the construction period which is not related to the construction

activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Investment properties are de-recognized when the entity transfers control of the same to the buyer. Further the entity also

derecognises investment properties when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is

expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is

recognized in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

Reclassification from /to investment property Transfers to (or from) investment property are made only when there is a

change in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying

amount ofthe property transferred and they do not change the cost ofthat property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Useful life

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the remaining period oflease or their estimated useful life (10 yean), whichever

is shorter.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment property are

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(g) Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired.
Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime
expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the l2-month expected credit losses or at an
amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

B, Non-financial assets

The Company assesses aI each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CCU) net selling price and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount ofthe asset over its remaining useful life.

(h) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract involves -
i. The use ofan identified asset,

ii. The right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use ofthe identified asset, and
iii. The right to direct the use ofthe identified asset.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

A. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remezrsurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives ofthe assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life ofthe asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.



Casa Grande Smart Volue Homes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A Il amounts are in Million Indian rupees , unless otherwise slaled)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease

commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement dale,

the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In

addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured ifthere is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change

in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such

lease payments) or a change in the assessment ofan option to purchase the underlying asset.

C. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e., those leases that have a lease

term of l2 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-

value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and

leases oflow-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ofthe asset are

classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included under Investment property.

Lease income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease including lease

income on fair value of refundable security deposits, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of
inflation. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs

incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

(i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing offunds.

Bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the

respective asset. All other bonowing costs are charged to statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifying asset when

substantially all ofthe activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

B. Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease

payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be

paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably

certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised

as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otheruise stated)

() Inventories
Direct expenditure relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) during
construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period

which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the statement

ofprofit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the real estate activity.

i. Work-in-progress: Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area (including land) of the real estate development
projects or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognized. Work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost

and net realizable value.
ii. Finished goods - Stock ofFlats: Valued at lower ofcost and ne1 realizable value.

iii. Raw materials, components and stores: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based on FIFO

basis.

iv. Land stock: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Land
Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance

under other assets during the course of obtaining clear and marketable title, free from all encumbrances and transfer of legal

title to the Company, whereupon it is transferred to land stock under inventories/ capital work in progress.

Land/ development rights received under joint development arrangements ('JDA') is measured at the fair value of the
estimated construction service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on launch ofthe project. The amount of
non-refundable deposit paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as land advance under other assets and on the launch
ofthe project, the non-refundable amount is transferred as land cost to work-in-progress/ capital work in progress. Further, the
amount ofrefundable deposit paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as deposis under loans.

(l) Revenue recognition
A. Revenue recognition
a, (i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at

an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of
indirect taxes in its stalement ofprofit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a

portion ofthe transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects
of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration
payable to the customer, ifany.

Revenue from real estate development of residential unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is

transferred to the customer, which generally coincides with transfer of physical possession of the residential unit to the
customer i.e.., handover/ deemed handover of the residential units. Deemed handover of the residential units is considered

upon intimation to the customers about receipt ofoccupancy certificate and receipt ofsubstantial sale consideration.

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified by the

Company as a single perlormance obligation, as they are highly interrelated./ interdependent.

The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion ofproject work and transfer of
control ofthe asset to the customer.
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For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the

contract in proportion ofthe percentage ofcompletion ofsuch real estate project and represents payments made by customers

to secure performance obligation ofthe Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received

and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and

Development) Act,2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any

financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision of finance tolfrom the

customer.

Further, for projects executed through joint development arrangements not being jointly controlled operations, wherein the

land owner/possessor provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land and in lieu of land owner
providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage of constructed area or certain percentage of the

revenue proceeds, the revenue from the development and transfer of constructed area./ revenue sharing arrangement in
exchange ofsuch development righs/ Iand is being accounted on gross basis on launch ofthe project. Revenue is recognised

over time using input method, on the basis of the inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total

expected inputs to the satisfaction ofthat performance obligation.

The revenue is measured at the fair value of the land received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents

transferred. When the fair value ofthe land received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of
the estimated construction service rendered to the land owner, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents

transferred. The fair value so estimated is considered as the cost of land in the computation of percentage of completion for
the purpose ofrevenue recognition as discussed above.

Recognition of revenue from sale of land and development rights:
Revenue from sale of land and development rights is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownership of such real estate/property, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyers, which generally coincides
with the firming ofthe sales contracts/agreements. Revenue from sale of land and developrnent rights is only recognised when

transfer oflegal title to the buyer is not a condition precedent for transfer ofsignificant risks and rewards ofownership to the

buyer.

Recognition of revenue from interior works and sale of concrete products and scrap:
Revenue is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration

to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Revenue excludes indirect taxes and is after
deduction ofany trade discounts.

Recognition of revenue from maintenance and other services:
Revenue in respect ofmaintenance services and other services is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms

of the respective contract as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by delivering the services as per

contractual ageed terms.

Income from Property Development:
The Company has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet the criteria to recognise

revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of residential and

commercial units as and when the control is passed on to the customers which is linked to the application and receipt of
occupancy certificate.

Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights:
Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights as and

when the control is passed on to the customers.
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a. (ii) Contract balances
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a

contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount ofconsideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment ofthe consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received

consideration (or an amount ofconsideration is due) from the customer. Ifa customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due

(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

b. Lease income

The Company's policy for recognition ofrevenue from operating leases is described in note 2.2(h).

c. Share in proliU loss of Limited Liability Partnerships ("LLPs") and partnership firm
The Company's share in profits/losses from LLPs and partnership firm, where the Company is a partner, is recognised as

income/loss in the statement of profit and loss as and when the right to receive its profit/ loss share is established by the
Company in accordance with the terms ofcontract between the Company and the partnership entity.

B. Other Income
a. Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, is recognised using
the effective interest rate method.

b. Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

(m) Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency :

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates ('the functional cunency'). The financial statements are presented in lndian
rupee (INR / {), which is the Company's functional and presentation cunency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

A. Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date ofthe transaction.

B. Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reporled using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

a. (iii) Cost to obtain a contract
The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs ofobtaining a contract with a customer if the Company expects to
recover those costs. The Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it enters into a new contract, which are

directly related to winning the contract. The asset recognised is amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer ofthe goods or services to which the asset relates.
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C. Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign
currency monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

(n) Retirement and other employee benelits
Retirement benefits in the form of state govemed Employee Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined
contribution schemes (collectively the 'Schemes'). The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
Schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an employee renders the
related service. The contribution paid in excess ofamount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of
amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on
project unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation ofa defined benefit plan in
its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asseo
are recognized in other comprehensive income. ln accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined
benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement ofprofit and loss. As required under Ind
AS compliant Schedule III, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans (net oftax) to
retained eamings.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement ofprofit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet,
since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

(o) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.

Current and defened tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

A. Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or |oss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by
using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the
treatment.

B. Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, defened tax is recognized on temporary differences at
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that su{ficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset

is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Defened tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity) in conelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or in equity.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect
that the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. ln the same way, Altemate Minimum Tax (AMT) is
recognised for LLP.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a cunent pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurTence or non-occurTence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the financial
statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any
impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe entity.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is

disclosed.

(q) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
Initial recognilion and measuremenl

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, trade receivable/trade payable that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at transaction value and investment in subsidiaries are measured at costing
accordance with Ind AS 27 - separate financial statement.

Subsequent measurement : Non-derivative linancial instruments

A. Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold

the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

B. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a

business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual

terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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E, Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and sssociates

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carried at cost. Impairment recognized, ifany, is reduced from the

carrying value.

F. De-recognition of Iinancial asset

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

G. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, Ioans and

borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and

bonowings including bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
which is described below.

Subsequent measurement: Non-derivative fnancial inslrumenls

H. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
ifthey are incurred for the purpose ofrepurchasing in the near term.

I. Financial liabilities at smortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ('ElR') method. Gains and losses

are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement ofprofit and loss.

J, De.recognition of financial Iiability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition ofthe original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement ofprofit or loss.

IC Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
) In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value ofan asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

C. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value

through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

D. Debt instruments at amortized cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost ifboth the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

(ElR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs

that are an integal part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available

to measure fair value, maximising the use ofrelevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In determining the fair value of i1s financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are

based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

L. Fair value hierarchy:
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the

nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level ofthe fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(r) Cash dividend to equity holders ofthe Company
The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is
authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a

liability on the date ofapproval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date ofdeclaration
by the Company's Board ofDirectors.

(s) Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction
ofan equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue that have changed the number ofequity shares outstanding, without a conesponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts ofcash that
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.
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(u) Restatement
The Company restates its financial statements and presents a opening balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding
period if it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements
or reclassifies items in its financial statements that has a malerial effect on the information in the balance sheet at the
beginning ofthe preceding period.
The Company corrects material prior period erors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements approved for issue
after their discovery by (a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occured; or
(b) if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, Iiabilities and
equity for the earliest prior period presented.

(v) Segment reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment information are
identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Company's management to allocate resources to the segments and
assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it eams revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company's other components. Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by the Managing Director who has
been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM), to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance.
Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz'Real estate and allied activities' and as such there is no separate
reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'. The Company has operations only within India.

Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment liability, total cost
incurred to acquire segment assets and total amount of charge for depreciation during the period, is as reflected in the
financial statements as ofand for the year ended 3l March 2023.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgments, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount ofassets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management makes judgement, estimates and assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial stalements.

The key judgements, estimates and assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its judgements, assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the conhol of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

A) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company apPlied the following judgements that significantly aflecr the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers:

a. (i) Identification of performance obligation

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified by the
Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interrelated/ interdependent. ln assessing whether
performance obligations relating to sale of undivided share of land and constructed area are highly interrelated/
interdependent, the Company considers factors such as:

- whether the customer could benefit from the undivided share of land or the constructed area on its own or together with
other resources readily available to the customer.

- whether the entity will be able to fulfil its promise under the contract, to transfer the undivided share of land without
transfer ofconstructed area or transfer the constructed area without transfer ofundivided share ofland.
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a. (ii) Timing ofsatisfaction of performance obligation
Revenue from sale of real estate units is recognised when (or as) control of such units is transferred to the customer. The
entity assesses timing of transfer of control of such units to the customers as transferred over time if one of the following
criteria are met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's performance as the entity
performs.
- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

- The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the enlity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

Ifcontrol is not transferred over time as above, the entity considers the same as transferred at a point in time.

For contracts where control is transferred at a point in time the Company considers the following indicators ofthe transfer of
- When the entity obtains a present right to payment for the asset.

- When the entity transfers legal title ofthe asset to the customer.

- When the entity transfers physical possession ofthe asset to the customer.

- When the entity transfen significant risks and rewards ofownership ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the customer has accepted the asset.

The aforesaid indicators of transfer of control are also considered for determination of the timing of derecognition of
investment property.

b) Accounting for revenue and land cost for projects executed through joint development arrangements (.JDA')
For projects executed through joint development arrangements, the Company has evaluated that land owners are not eDgaged
in the same line of business as the Company and hence has concluded that such arangements are contracts with customers.
The revenue from the development and transfer of constructed arerrevenue sharing arrangement and the corresponding land/
development rights received under JDA is measured at the fair value of the estimated construction service rendered to the
land owner and the same is accounted on launch ofthe project. The fair value is estimated with reference to the terms ofthe
JDA (whether revenue share or area share) and the related cost that is allocated to discharge the obligation of the Company
under the JDA. Fair value ofthe construction is considered to be the representative fair value ofthe revenue transaction and
land so obtained. Such assessment is carried out at the launch ofthe real estate project and is not reassessed at each reporting
period. The management is ofthe view that the fair value method and estimates are reflective ofthe current market condition.

c) Significant financing component
For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the
contract in proportion ofthe percentage of completion ofsuch real estate project and represents payments made by customers
to secure performance obligation ofthe Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received
and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and
Development) Act,20l6. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any
financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision of finance to/from the
customer,
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B. Classification of property
The Company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory as below.

Investment property comprises land and buildings (principally offrce and residential properties) that are not occupied
substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held
primarily to eam rental income and capital appreciation. These building/gs are substantially rented to tenants and not intended
to be sold in the ordinary course ofbusiness.

lnventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, this is residential and
commercial property that the Company develops and intends to sell before or during the course of construction or upon
completion of construction.
Estimation ofnet realizable value for inventory and land advance

Inventory is stated at the lower ofcost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference 10 market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date
and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same
geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for
similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the
date ofcompletion.

With respect to land inventory and land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of future cash
flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a project will be completed, the expected
date ofcompletion, the discount rate used and the estimation ofsale prices and construction costs.

C. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs ofdisposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing ofthe asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the groMh rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to disclosure of fair value of investment property recorded by the
Company.

D, Defined benefit plans - Gratuity
The cost ofthe defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value ofthe gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination ofthe discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. ln determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
Indi4 the management considers the interest rates of govemment bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.

E. Measurement of financial instruments at amortized cost
Financial instrument are subsequenlly measured at amortized cost using the eflective interest (,EIR,) method. The
computation of amortized cost is sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and
the expected life ofthe financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of
financial instruments.



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless olherwise stated)

G. Provision for litigations and contingencies
Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present
obligation arising from past events the settlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits, which involves judgements around estimates the ultimate outcome of such past events and measurement of the
obligation amount. Due to judgements involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in future
periods.

2.4 Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31 2023, MCA amended the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS I, Presentation ofFinancial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting
policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of
'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption ofthis amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 0l
Apil2023.
Ind AS 12, Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope ofthe initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and olfsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 0l April2023.
The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements ofthe Company.

F. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment
The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment is delermined based on evaluation made by the
management of the expected usage of the asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence of the
asset. Due to the judgements involved in such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage in
future period.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment

Computers
Furniture and

Fixtures
Lease Hold

Improvements
Office

Equipment
Total

As at 0l April 2021

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2023

Net block

As at 01 April 2021

As at 3l March 2022

As at 31 March 2023

0.27

0.33

4.13

0.52

2.21

0.04 l.l4
0.60

0.52

4.65

4.81

2.17

0.04

3.3s

1.09

b.5 /
0.89

7.46

6.s 1

t.t2

0.25

0.25

0.42

0.67

0.27

0.35

0.45

9.46

l.l5

0.0,r 13.97

2.49

1.t5 1.09 2.19

1.80 0.97 3.t9

2.95 2.06 5.68

6.57

4.97

8.29

4.13

3.50

6.5r 0.04

2.17

t.t2
1.29

Note - On transition to Ind AS (i.e. I April 2021), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
property, plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment.

Cost

Depreciation
As at 0l April 2021

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2023



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Finrncial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts ore in Millions, unless otherhlise stated)

4. Inv€stments
As at

3l March 2023
As at

3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Investments

Quoted Mutual Funds
Mutual Fund
Tata Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth
(Units - 2,70,445, NAV - { 3,247.63/unit)

Total Investments at fair value through Profit and Loss

Total Investments

Current

Non-Currenl

Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market valu€ ofquoted investments

5. Loans
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated, measured at amortised cost)

878.31

878.31

878.31

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

878.31

878.31

878.31

As at
0l April 2021

Loans to related party
Loan to related paiies
Total loans carried at amortis€d cost

Current

Non-Current

6. Other financial assets

(Measured at amortised cost)

I ,353. l5 868.54 551 .07

1,353.15 868.54 551.07

1,353.15

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

868.54 551.07

Security deposit

Bank deposits with more than l2 months
Interest accrued but not due

Interest accrued and due

Rental advance

Total financial instruments at amortised cost
Current

Non-Current

4.63

65.26

283.18

0.15

L48

4.63

26.09

150.94

0.06

0.68

0.69

20.80

3.24

0.49
354.70 25.22
284.81

69.89

151.68

30.72

3.73

2t.49

182.40



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

7. Other assets As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

8. Deferred tax assets (net)/ Deferred tax liabilities (net)

23.48

18.36

0.41

0.01 0.01

1.27
0.50

3.87

49.20

42.26 I1.78 53.07

42.26

As at
3l March 2022

53.07

As at
0l April 2021

As at
3l March 2023

Deferred tax liabilities
Inventory
Bonowings
Gross deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment

Uneamed revenue

Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities)

9, Inlentories

813.67

5.73

560.44

0.60

169.31

3.8 l
819.40

2.90

1,058.96

0.65

748.66

0.58

0.30

215.47

0.02

561.04 173.12

1.061.86 215.79

212.46 188.8s 42.67

As at
3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Work- in-progress

Raw materials, components and stores

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value

10. Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)

5,130.47

75.tt
3,629.31

5.7 s

1,806.82

4.78

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
01 April 2021

Trade receivables 143.8 I 107.41 42.06

Advance to suppliers
Advances for land conhacts

Prepaid expenses

Balance with Govemment authorities

Totrl other assets

Current

Non Current

11.78

719.89

5.105.58 t.tr.rs.o

t,l3.8l t07.41 42.06



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Ststements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(AII amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise slqled)

Trade receivables ageing schedule As at
3l March 2023

As at
0l April 2021

ll. Cash and cash equivalents

I 3 5.93

6.43

I .45

40.94

t.t2

143.81 t07.41 42.06

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Balances with banks:

- On current accounts

- Deposits with original maturity ofless than three monlhs

Cash on hand

Totsl cash and cssh equivalent

104.70

16.59

0.17

58.20

0.07

121.16 83.01

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rales based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the
respective short-term deposit rates.

12. Bank balances other than cash and cash equiyalents

58.27

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

In deposits accounts:

- Original maturities more than three months and less than l2 months

Total other bank balance

13. Current tax asset (net)

2.39 5.37

2.39 5.37

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Advance tax

Provision for tax

Total current tax (net)

227.90

(280.67)
57.t4 2.40

(219.70 (4s.81 )

As at
3l March 2022

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpayment
Current but not due

Less than 6 months

6months-lyear
I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

95.61

I1.68
0.12

82.92

0.09

(5r.??t ,r6r.s6t /r'l,tl



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

14. Equity shar€ capital Equity shares oft l0 each

Number Amount
a) Authorised share capital
As at 0l April 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at 3l March 2022
Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at 3l March 2023

10,000 0.10

10.000 0.10

Rights, preferences and r€strictions rttached to the equity shares
The Company has onc class ofequity shares viz., regular equiw shares.

Regular Equity shares : These equity shares are having a par value of { l0 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for One vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the board is subject to the approval of the shareholders in lhe ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets ofthe Company after distribution ofall preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

Equity shares of { l0 each

Number Amount
10,000 0. t0

000 0.r0

10.000 0.10

10,000

b) Issued share capital
At 0l April 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2022

Increase(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2023

t0,000 0.t0

0.10

l0 000 0.10

I 0.10

Details of shareholders holding more than 5yo shares and shares held by promotors in the company

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

No. of Shafes %o of l{oldin o. ofShaSN of Hold tngEquity shar€s

Casagrand Premier Builder private Limited (Formerly
k-nown as Casagrand Builder private Limited)

t0,000 t00% 10,000

As at
0l April 2021

100%

Equity shares In
Casagrand Premier Builder private Limited (Formerly
known as Casagrand Builder privarc Limited) t0,000 t00%

c) Paid-up share capital
At 0l April 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l ittarch 2022

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l March 2023

No- o/o of



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All qmounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Details of changes in the promotors holdings

3l March 2023
As at

3l March 2022 0r Anril 2021
As at As at

Equity shares

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly

known as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

15, Other equity

0% 0% 0%

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022 0l Aoril202l

As at

.) Retained earnings

Opening
Add: Additions
Less : Uti I ised/ transferred

Closing

16. Borrowings

(8.20)

1.55

(3.78)

(4.42)

(0.62)
(3.16)

(6.6s) (8.20) (3.78)

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

A) Non-current borrowings

Secu red

i) Debentures
l2% Unlisted, redeemable, cumulative, non-convertible Series I

debentures ('series I NCDs") at par value of{ 10,00,000 each

(31 Much2023 - Nil,3l March 2022-853,31March2021 -Nil)

l2% Unlisted, redeemable, cumulative, non-convertible Series A
debentures at par value of { 1,00,000 each

(31 March 2023 - Nil,3l March 2022 - Nil,3l March 2021 - 8047)

ii) Term Loans

From financial institutions

Total non current borrowings

B) Current borrowings

Unsecured
i) Loan repayable on demand

From related parties

Total current Borrowings

1,388.55

852.39

802.69

t7 | .45 r ,106.31

1,388.55 t,023.84 1,909.00

0.05 t2.95 I 1.87

0.05 12.95 t t.87



Cr.. (;nnd. Smtrr V.lu. Hom6 Privrr. Limil.d
Not . io FiItlci.l Strt.m.nt! for lhclerr.!d.d 31 Mtrch 2021

(AU onounr, a.. h, Mi lont unless otheNke stotc.l)

Disburlem

Mo

2023 2022 2021

lIn Mn Mr

I

Sland!rd
Chancred

Capital
Limitcd

6t0.00

Bonowing Entity: Cala Grandc Smlrl valuc Homes Private Limitcd

Natlr. ofs.€urity :

L Prop€rty: First pari p.ssu ch.tge ovcr "Crs.8r6nd Utopia" loca&d in Mnapakkem, Chennai

2. Persoral Suaranlcc: Mr Atun MN
l. Corporalc Guallnte.: Crsag,snd Prcmicr Builder Pnvrte Limited

4r6 83

Rcpalmcnt Terms & Ratc of Intcresl :

l. Flcility TWc: Commcrcial Resl Estatc Facility (Tcrm L-oan)

Total Facility rmoun! a 700.00 Million
2. Tcnor: 48 monihs
3 Rcpaym.n!: Facilig repayablc in instalmcnts as stated below:
(i){ 13.16 Millionpaylblconrune30,2023
(ii) a 13.16 Million payrblc on Scptcmbcr 30. 2023

(iii) I 13.16 Million p6yable on Dec.mb€r ll,2023
(iv) a 13.16 Millron payableonMarch3l,2024
(v) ( 19.74 Million payable on Jun€ 30,2024
(vi) a 19 74 Million payable on Seplcmb€r 10,2024
(vii) a 26.12 Million payrble on Dec.mb€r11,2024
(viii) I 26l2 Million payable on March 31, 2025

(ix) t 26.32 Million payabl€ on Jun€ 30,2025
(x) 126.32 Millaon poyable on S€ptcmbcr 10,2025
(xi) I 26.32 Million payable on Dcccmber 31, 2025

(xii) a 26 28 Million payablc on March 31,2026
4. Prepayncnti R.pa)"ble at any lime ftom the amounts from lhe inlemal accnEh arising from thc

cash nows of rhc projecr (Ulopia), such rcpaymcnt sball be a minimun of a 20.00 Million limiled
lo hxicc a month unless otherwis€ agrced by the lcndcr

5. Rate of inrcresr: monrhly at lhe ratc of l2.82% p.a (floating).

6. Inr.rcst R.set: at dle dascrelion of lender !t qusrterly basis, linled to MIBOR for an INR Spread



Crlr GrtodcSm.rr vrluc llom.. Privrrc Linitd
Note3 to Finrncirl Sutenert for lh. y€.r.nd.d 3l Mrtch 2023

(All anuudt nt la Mtliot$ lnl.ts oth.twls. natal)

DhbuNlm

Mtr

zt)zl 2022 2021

Mn M.

2

India Realty

Ercellencc 851 00

aonowing Enlity: Crss Gr de Sman vsluc Homcs Pnvd€ Limited

Nrtur. of Sccunty :

I Propcrty: fid lanking cxclusivc chgg€ by Ety of memomndun of d€posjt of tidc dceds (

rcgistralion lhereo0 in rcspcci oflhe Mo488ed prop.rty ' Project Land admeasuring Acres I1.82

in Survcy no. 343,321,344,353,rs4,32o,341,345n,318,352,355,345/3, 346, 348v5 Situltcd

M.napatkin Vilhge. Alandur Talut, Chcnnai district and enlir€ saleoble area of I |,81,246 squarc

fcct.
2. Slock lnd r.ceiwbles & Movabl. Propcnics: (i) Filst ranking €xclusive charge bv s"v
h),pothecalion over thc Hypothccated Propcrty - all pr.scnr and fulurc movabl€ prop€ni€s of lhe

Compony in rclstion to lhe Projccl (Manapdkkam) including withoul Iimiration: (a) all cntill.m€nl

and nghts of the Company on lhe Receiva,bles, moveabl€ assets and future cash flows in resp€ct

lhe Proje€l; lnd (b) lhc Es.row Accounts, Conslruction Account, all other banl accounts of lhe

Company rnd all monies and inves[ncnls lying to lhe credit of thc Escrow Accounts, Construction

(ii) Sccood mnting chrrgr by way of hFotttccalion on cashflo*s in rcsFcl of the untitl.d real

cslate proiect to b€ dcveloped by Casagrand Horizons Pnvale Limitcd at Pallikarnnai villagc'

Tmil Ndu
(iii) Sccond ranling charge by way of hFothe.alion on cashflows in respcct of the untid€d real

cstatc proj€cl lo b€ devcloFd by Casa Grandc Gracc Privit€ Limitcd al Thalambur, Tsmil N6du

(iv) Sccond mnfing ch.r8c by $ry of hypolhccstion on calhflows in respcct of thc real csiat.

project tillcd tsoulevrrd bcing dcvelopcd by Gazy Mag Privale Limiled at Chikkaglbbi Kamaraka

(v) Sc..nd mnting cb.rgc by wly of hwothccation on crshJlows in r€sp.cl of thc rcil cslale

projecl tillcd Millenia b€ing dcvclop.d by Calsgrand Milleni! Private Limit€d 0t Thiruvrllur,

Tamil Nndu
(vi) S.clnd chrtgc by wly ofh)'pothecdion on calhflo*s in respcct of the real eslate proj€cl litled

'Casagrand GBndio' bcing develop.d by Casa Gr$de Glacc Private Limiled at vandalur Talul,

Chengslpanu Districl.
(vii) Sccand rankang chargc by way of hFothecalion on cashflo\*s in resp€cl ofthe untitlcd real

cstarc proJccl to bc devcloped by Casa Gran& Gardcn City Builders Privale Limncd sl

Knshnamiapumm villag€(KR Purrm), Krishnaraiapuram Hobli, Bangalore Ealt Taluk

3. Corporalc Suaranlc.: Cassgrand Prcmj€r Build.r Privalc Linitcd

85219

S.no



Crsr Grrde Smrn vrl c Homet Privrt€ Limil.d
Notcs to Finrncirl SLt€den.3 for th. yclrcndcd 3l Mtrch 2023

(A aruuds arc h Millio8, rnless othe ls. stoted)

2t)2tzozl 2072

MI Mn ]lln

Di!buriem

Mn

S.no

Rcpaym.nt Tcrms & Ratc of Interesi I

l. Fscility Tlpc: 8530 Unlistc4 ndctmable, cumulalite, non-conv€nibl€ senes I debcntures

('Series I NCDS')d par i.c , a 1.00 Million
Total Flcilit smounl: a 853.00 Million
2. Final Mdurity: On or prior lo Mnch 31, 2026

3. Repaymcnt: NCDS arE r.delmable in 4 irutdmcnts.s follows:

(i) 25% (TwEnty Filt Perc4 ) of6e Princip6l on Jun€ 10,2025;

(ii) 25% (TwEnty Fivc PcrEcrn) oflhc Princip.l on ScPtcmbcr 30, 2025;

(iii) 257.(T\ €nty Fivc Pcrccot) oftlE Principal on D.t.nber 31, 2025; lnd
(iv) 2s7.(Twrnty Fiv. PcrE ) of th. Pnncipol on March I I, 2026

Prcpayment: Repayable al rny lime from th€ amounls fiom th€ intemal accruals arjsing from

cash flows of lhe project (Mampakkam), such rcpayme shallb. a minimum of {2000Million
unless olherwise lgrccd by the dcbcnture trustce in wnting
4. Inr.nm intlresl coupon: quanerly compoundd al lhc ralc of l2olo p.a (fixed). First co

compounded on D..anbcr 3 I, 202 I
5. Inrcrcst Moratorium: up lo Scptember 30, 2022 ('Momtorium Penod") and rhe Coupon d

thc Monlorium Period shsll accruc and b. compounded on a quancrly basis

6 Addilronal lnteresl: shall be an amounl ihat provides an IRR of l9ol. on rh€ Subscription amount'

psyablc simultln€oully wilh psymenl ofPrincipsl in th! samc ofproponion as thc principsl rcpoi

(i) 25% (Twuty Fivc Pcrcc ) ofthc Additionrl inlcr6t on Junc 30,2025:

(ii) 25olo (Tw.nty Fivc P€rcenl) of lhc Addilional int€resl Sept€mb€r 3 I, 2025;

(iii) 257.(Tw.nty Fivc P.rc!nt) oflhc Addilional interesl oD Dcc€mbcr 31, 2025i and

(iv) 25(Twnty Fiv€ Pcrceno ofthe Addrlional intlrest on March 31,2026

Loan fore.loscd on I 7lh Fcbru!ry 2023

Bonowing Enlity: Cssa Grandc Sman Valu. Homes Privd€

2. Stock, R€ccivablcs aod movable property:

(i) Exclutivc chargc by lhc wsy of h)'Dothc.ation on nll rcceivsbles of'Majestic! projecl including

ali sold, unsola, itiu-nc-c ."eipls as well as devcloPmcnl and other chargcs add any cash flow 
. .

(ii) cross collrierntisation ovcrall .cccivables of'Crssgrand Flagship' projecl inrluding all sold'

unsold, insuanct rcccips as well as development and olher charges and any cash flow

t ; i";*t c&ssStand Premicr Build€r Pnval€ Limitcd & casagrand Horizons Pivate

Limitcd

Limrled

MongageRegislered Simpleby
al rharb€'MaJenica" rncof prolproposed

DrChennar slricl,'rvil aluI,l0land lageManapakkamng

idenl ial 'CasagrandlateraliCross
Nosmul Sand plethal b€aringparc€l

PallikaranaistrictDrKanclurSholiall nganaladianpet
7 8Nadu lolallTamil adm$sunng

Trmil N.du

Nature of Security l

I Property:

(i) Exclusive chatge

(prcs€nt .nd futurc)

villag!, TUnba.am Taluk, Chcngalpei District'

arcs to bc giflcd for Linl Rosd & OSR)

g', 71

d.te of first disburs.ment (Feb 2021)

i. f"p.yr-, of loan pnncip6l: 24 monthlv ins6lmcnts $aning ftom 37lh month fi,om lsl

disburs.menl.
3. Principal Moratorium.36 Monlhs from lhe dale of lsl disburscmenl (inlerc$ on

amount paysble during lhis Period)
L r".r"i pq"Ur" Ino"Uly at the floating nte of t2.75% p a (PLR of 19 50 % minus 6'75% Fr
armum) ri thc tim. ofdisburscmcnt

i Irrt"i"rt n".a, tnt"rot ole changes b6scd on lhc Changcs in P'imc l'nding Rate' Thc chdSr in

moraloriun of 36 months) from lheI Term ofloan: I 1,500.00 million - 60 months (including

PLR wiU b€ al lhe sole discretion ofTCHFL

990 00

Tats Clpital
Housing

Financa

Limitcd

l

residenrial

I

Flagship"

all land locared

Village, Taluk.



Crs. Grrde Snrrt vrh. Hom6 Privrt€ Limil.d
Not..lo IiDr.ci.l Stit€dcni! for lh! yerr endcd 3l Mrrch 2023

(A anoun at. i Mlluorlt mless otheNise ttuac.l)

Dilburscm

Mn

2{J2l 2022 2l)21

Nln Mn lUn

I

JM
Financial

Crcdn
Solulions
Limilc!

t,295 00

Bonowing Enlity: Clss Grande Smart Valuc Homcs Privaic Limitcd
Naturc ofsccurity :

L Prop€rty: The loan is secured by mortgage of projcct land Utopb mersuring 10. 19 acres localed

at Mrnapgkkrm and Mugrliltllam, Chennai

2. Sloct & R.ceivables & Moveablc Propcdcsl
(i) Hpothecrtion ard cscrow of r.c.ivablcs ftoln lhe salcs of sold/unsold units in lhc Proje.l

Ulopia and Proje.l Zenilh.
(ii) Extension of €xisting sccurity (mongage plus Hnothecation and escrow of receivrblcs) over

Projcd Zenilh &s s.curity for the fscility with cross-.ollaleriliTation

3. Pcrsonal Ousr.dte€: MJ. Arun MN
4. Corporat. Gurmrtcc: CrssSr"nd Premi€r Buildcr Prival. Limilcd

17144 r, t06 32

Repaymcnt Tcrms & Rate of Int€rest :

l. Facility Typc: Sc.urcd Tcrm loan facility a 1295 00 Million
2. Tcnor & Morat: 4t Monlh lenor from thc dal. of disbursemc F€b 2021, wrth 30 Monlh of
principal moratorium snd I 8 monlhly lnstallment

3. Ratc of Intcrest: I 5 25% p a. Fixei
Loan forecloscd on 06th May 2022

5

India R..lty
Exccllcnce

Fund lV
804 70

Borrowing Entity: Casa Grandc Sman Valuc Homes Privale Limil.d
Nalurc ofsccurity :

l. ProFrty:
Fi6t pari passu charSc by way of simpl. mortS!8! oD Proieci 'Utopia' and Prqecl t nd are-!

m.asuring lO lcres 19 Cents compris.d in various suNey numbers, situalcd at Mugalivakkam and

Marupokkam Villag., Chcnnai owned by $e Company and with enlir€ sal€able 8,E7,751 Sq Fl. in

favour of thc Deb€nture Trustee of the facilily for th€ b€nefit of the Deb.ntur€ holders and shared

with Chakluglbi D€bcnture Trustces (Vistm ITCL (lndia) Limited) for the ChikkuSubi Debcnture

holders.

2. Srock lnd Rcceiwblcs & molrblc prop€nicsi

First pari parsu charSc by lhc way ofhwolh.cation ofall prcscdl lnd future movable proFnies of
Ca-s! Cra.d€ Sman Vlluc Homes Privat€ Limit€d in relation lo the projecl (Ulopia) proposcd lo b€

devcloped on the land, including s) entillcment of fulurc cashflow and rec€ivables fron lhe

project, b) lh. Escrow accounls, conllruction accounls, all other bank accounts and all monics and

investm€nts lying lo lh€ crcdil oflhe Escrow ac.ounts, in flvour of lh€ D€b€nlure Truslee of$e
facilrty for thc b€ncfit oflhc Debcnlur. holders and shared wilh Chiktugubi Deb€nlure Truslees

(vistra ITCL(lndia) Limited) for th€ Chikkusubi Debentur€ holders.

L Corporaic Guar.nlcc: C&sagrand Prcmier Bujldcr Privalc Limilcd

802 69Repsymcnl Tcrms & Rale oflntercsl :

L Facility Type: 8,M7 Unlist€d, redccmable, cumulativc, nol'convenibl. Serics A debentues al

p6, value ofl0.l0 Million erch
Toral Facility amounl: 1804.70 Million
2. Final Maturity: Any date bctween Septemb€r 30,2022 and Mnrch ll,202l at the discrelion ofthc

kb€nlue Trustee

3. RcFynenl: NCDS arE rcdaemabl€ in 4 instalmcnts as follows:

(i) 25% (Tw€nty fivc Pcrc€nt) ofthc Principol on Dcccmb.r 3 | , 202 I

(ii) 25% (Tw.nty fivc Percenl) of lhc Principal on M ch 3 I , 2022

(aii) 25% (T\NEnty livc Perccnl) ofthc Priocipal on Junc 30, 2022

(iv) 25% (Twcnty five Perccnt) oflhc Principal on September 10, 2022

4. Intcrim inl.rcst coupon: Qurncrly compounded tud duc quancrly sl lhe lale of l2'lo p &. Firsl

mupon du. on Jud30,2019
5. Additioml Inlercsl: lhe additiodal interesl p.yable st an amou thal provides an IRR of2l.5%
p.a. simultancously with any poym.nl of principsl or as pcr lh. schcdulc bclow whichcvcr is

earli.r:
(i) 25% (Twcnty fivc Pcrccnt) ofdtc Pnncipol oD Deccmbcr I l, 2021

(ii) 25% (Twenty fivc Pcrccnt) ofth! Principolon March 31,2022

(iii) 25% (TwEnty fivc Perccno ot$e Principol onJune 30,2022

(iv) 25% (Twcnty fiv. Perccnt) oflhe Principal on Scpt€mbcr 30,2022

toan foreclos.d on 03rd May 202 I

S.no



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(Ail amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

17. Other financial liabilities
(Carried at amortised cost) As at

3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Interest accrued but not due

Interest accrued and due

Accrued expenses

Redemption Premium on Debenture

Total other financial liabilities

Current

Non current

18. Other liabilities

2.09

30.36

18.09

53.94

69.23

I .41

22.00

76.16

0.28

50.54 146.58 76.44

50.54

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

76.44

As at

0l April 2021

124.58

22.00

Totrl other liabilities
Current

Non current

19. Trade payables

78.56

35.80

5,620.69

0.02

86.73

29.37

3,472.75

0.07

s,735.07 3.s88.92 1.346.98

5,735.07

As at

3l March 2023

tt6.l7
3,472.75

I 13.04

I,233.94

As at

0l April202l
As at

3l March 2022

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues ofmicro small and medium enterprises

- total outstanding dues to others

Total trade payables

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties

Tot.l trade payables

253.67 155.27 90.19

8l .57

172.10

l.l5
t54.12

l.l4
89.05

247 .t9
6.48

lL4.69
40.58

67.31

22.88

253.61 155.27 90.r9

Advance from customers (including cancelled customer)

Statutory dues and related liabilities
Uneamed Revenue

Others

84.44

28.4t

t,233.94
0.19



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Trade payables ageing schedule

Total outstending dues of micro, small and medium enterprises

Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstsnding dues to others

Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

As at

3l March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l April202l

t.t4

81.57 l.l5 t.t4

t64.34

6.56

l.0l
0.19

ts2.33

1.60

0.19

88.00

0.94

0.1 I

112.10 154.12 89.05

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Suppliers as defined under "The Micro Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act 2006" is based on information available with the management. As certified by the managemenl, on

the amounts overdue (if any) to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises on account of principal amount, interest has been accrued

and will be paid to suppliers on demand of claim. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the

balance sheet date.

20. Revenue from contracts with customers
3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Other operating revenues

Modification income

Cancelled customer income

Scrap sales

Total reYenu€ from operations

Contract balances

32.51 12.73

As at
31 March 2023

As at
March 2O223

27.50

1.03

3.98

10.38

0.63

t.72

Contract assets

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue

Contract liabilities
Uneamed Revenue

Customer advances

21. Other income

5,620.69

78.56

107 .41

3,472.7 5

86.73

3l March 2023 3l arch 2022

Dividend income on mutual funds

Interest income

5.99

15.09

3.01 21.08

81.45

0.10

0.02

l.t4
0.01

r 43.81

3.01



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

22. Cost of raw materials, components and stores consumed
31 March 2023 3 I March 2022

a. Raw material and components consumed
Inventory at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Purchases

Less: inYentory at the end ofthe year

23. Construction activity expens€s

472.50 285.21

3l March 20 3 3l March 2022

Land cost

Approval, legal and liaison

Construction cost

Interest and financial charges

156.36

5.45

840.14

26,47

|,028.42 1,537.27

24. (lncrease)/ d€crease in stock of flats, land stock and work-in-progress and traded goods

3l March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Opening balance

Work-in-progress

Total opening balance

b) Closing balance

Work-in-progress

Total closing balance

c) Total difference in inventory (a) - (b)

25. Finance costs

3,629.31

3,629.31

5,130.47

5,130.47

I,806.82

1,806.82

3,629.31

3,629.31

(l,s0l. r6) (r,822..19)

31 March 2023 3l March 2022

lnterest on bonowings

Other bonowings costs

Less: Bonowing Cost transfened to Construction activity expenses

26, Depreciation and amortization expense

80.43

3.25

33.7 5

(26.47)

7.28 3.25

31 March 2023 3l March 2022

26.47

7 .28

83.68

(80.43)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3. l9 2.49

3.r9 2.49

5.7 5 4.78

541.86 286.18

(75. r l) (5.7s)

905.51

14.84

536.49

80.43



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherv)is e slated)

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Rates and taxes

Repairs ond maintenance

Others

CSR expenditure (refer details below)

Advertising and sales promotion

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional fees

Payment to auditor (Refer details below)

Donations

Rent

Bank charges

Books and periodicals

Pryment to Auditors

0.06

0.04

0.06

0.t2
0.30

15.00

0.52

0.28

0.3 0

1.09

2.63

0.27

0.07

0.25

0.r4
0.01

16.38 4.76

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

As auditor:
Audit fee 0.3 0 0.25

27. Other expens€s

0.30 0.25



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

Details of CSR exp€nditure:

As per Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its

average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) actiYities. The

areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care

and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster reliefand rural development project.

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

(ii) Amount ofexpenditure incurred / transferred to unspent CSR account

(iii) Shortfau at the end ofthe year

(iv) Total ofprevious years shortfall
(v) Reason for shortfall
(vi) Nature ofCSR activities

(vii) Details ofrelated party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust conlrolled by the

company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

(viii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a

contractual obligation, the movements in the proYision during the year should be shown

separately

28. Tax expense
3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Current incomc tax:
Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect ofcurrent income tax ofPrevious year

Deferred tex:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

i) Property, plant and equipment

ii) Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

iii) Inventory

iv) Uneamed revenue

v) Liability under joint development arrangement

vi) Bonowings

Income t8x expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(2.2s)

0.58

253.24

(310.31)

60.97

5. l3

t73.90

3.20)

7.36 21.74

1.09

1.09

(0.34)
(0.56)

391.13

(s33.l e)



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 3l March 2023 and

3l March 2022

3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax on accounting profil at statutory income tax rate

25.17%

Tax effect on account oftransition to IND AS

Deferred tax effect

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to

the current tax ofprior years

Income tax expense rcported in the statement of profit or loss

8.91

2.24

s8.73

(53.61)

23.32

5.87

168.03

(146.16)

27.74

*The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section I I 5BAA of the Income Tax Act, l96l as introduced by the

Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for Income Tax for the year

and re-measured its Deferred tax asset (or/and deferred tax liability) basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

29. Earnings per share
3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings ( A )

Equity Shares

Number of shares at the beginning ofthe year

Add :- shares issued during the year

Total Number ofshares outstanding at the end ofthe year ( B )

Weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the year - Basic

Add : Weighted average number ofshares that have dilutive effect on EPS

Weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the year - Diluted ( C )

Earning per shrre of par vrlue INRI0 - Basic ( D = A / B ) (In t)
Earning per share of par value INRI0 - Diluted ( E = A / C ) (In t)

1.55

10,000

(4.42)

t0,000

10,000

r0.000

10,000

10,000

155

155

(442)

(442)

7.36

10,000

10,000



(A ll amounls are in Millions, unless olherwise slated)

30. Fair vrlue mersurcmeDts
The details offair value measuremenl ofCompany's financial assets/liabilities are as below:

Finrlcial sssets/liabilities mersured 8t Fsirvslue through profiUloss:
As at

3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Investments in quoted investments -mutual funds

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instlument could be exchanged in a current

fansaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

The managemenl assessed that the carrying values ofcash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, short term investments, loans, trade payables,

bonowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to the short-term maturities.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
. The quoted investments (mutual funds) arc valued using the quoted market prices in active markets.

Set out below, is a comparison by class ofthe carrying amounts and fair value ofthe Company's financial insFuments:

As st As at
31 March 2023 31 Msrch 2022

Car ng Vslue Fair value Carrying Value Fair value

Financial Assels

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Fitrarcial Liabilities
Bonowings (Non-Current)

Bonowings (Cunent)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

t21.46
2.39

1,353.15

354.'10

t2t.46
2.39

1,353.15

354.70

868.54

t82.40
868.54

182.40

83.01 83.01

| ,o23 .E4 t ,023 .84

t2.95 12.95

t55.27 tss.27
124.58 t24.58

As ,t
0l April 2021

Cgrryins Value Fsir vslue

1,388.55

0.05

253.67

50.54

I,3EE.55

0.05

253.67

50.54

Fitrancirl Assets

Investments (non-cunent)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assels

Financial Liabilities
Bonowings (Non-Cunent)

Bonowings (Cunent)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

58.27

5.37

551.07

2s.22

1,909.00

I1.87
90.19

76.44

58.27

5.37

551.07

25.22

1,909.00

I1.87
90.19

76.44

31. Capital Matragement

The Company's objectives of capital management is to ma\imize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Company may adjust the retum to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company manages its capital structure

and makes adjustments in light ofchanges in economic conditions and the requirements ofthe financial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.
.Equity includes equity share capilal and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders

.Net debt includes borrowings (non-current and cunent), trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equiYalents

(including bank balances other than cash and cash equiYalents and margin money deposits with banks)

Casa Grandc Smart value Homes Privste Limited
Not€s to Filancial Strtcments for the yerr crded 3l March 2023

Level
As at

3l March 2023
878.31



(A ll omounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stqted)

As rt
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Bonowings (non-current and cunent)

Trade payables

Othcr financial liabilities (current and non-current)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents(including balanc€s at bank other

than cash and cash equivalents aod margin money deposits with
Net Debt (A)
Equity share capital

Other equity

|,036.79
155.2',1

146.58

( 83.01)

1,920.87

90.19
76.44

( 123.8s) (63.64)

1,568.96
0.10

1,255.63

0.10

(8.20)

2,O23.86

0.10
(3.78)6.65)

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023, March 31,2022 urd April l, 2021. The sensitivity

analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debl and the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt. The analysis

excludes the impact ofmovements in market vadables on the carrying values ofgratuity and other post retirement obligationtprovisions.

The below assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitiyity ofthe relevant profit or loss item is the effect ofthe xsumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial

assets and financial liabilities held at March 31,2023, March 31,2022and April1,2021.

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an cxposure will fluctuate because ofchanges in [nterest rate. The entity's

exposure to the risk 0f changes in lnlerest rates relates primadly to the entity's openling activities (when receivables or Payables are subject to

different interest rates) and the entity's net receivables or payables

Chatrge in rate
Effect of profit

beforc tax

3l March 2023 +lo/o

-to/o

+lYo
-lYo
+lo/o

-lo/o
0l April 2021

0.34
(0.34)

0.84
(0.84)

2.34
(2.34\

Casa Grrnde Smrrt Vslue Homes Private Limitcd
Notes to Finarcial Ststemcnts for the year ended 3l March 2023

1,388.60

253.67
50.54

Equity (B) (6.ss) (8.10) (3.68)

Equity plus net debt (C= A+B) I,562.41 '1,247.53 2'020.18

Geadng ratio (D = A/C) 100.42vo 100.65% 100.18%

In order to achi€ve the objective of maximize shareholders value, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that

it meets financial covenants attached to the inlerest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requircments. Any significant breach in

meeting the financial covenants would allow the bank to call bonowings. There have been no breaches in the financial coYenants of above-

mentioned interest-bea ng borowing.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years.

32. Financial risk msnrgement objectives atrd policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is

to finance the Company's operations.

The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than

cash and cash equivalents that derive directly fiom its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credil risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management ovelsees the management ofthese risks and

ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are goyemed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,

measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

i- Mrrket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises two types ofrisk: interest rate dsk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real-estate risk.

The Company is affected by the price volalility of certain commodities/ real estate. Its operating activities require the ongoing development of
real estate. The Company's management has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding commodity/ real estate price risk and

its mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

Itrtercst rate setrsitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The

impact on the Company's profit before tax is duc to changes in the fair value ofnon-current and cunent borrowings and othet cunenl and non

current fi nancial liabilities.

31 Ntarch 2022



Casa Grrnde Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts ore in Millions, unless orheruise slaled)

The Company invests surylus funds in liquid mutual firnds. The Company is exposed to market price risk arising ftom uncertainties about future

values of the investment. The Company manages the equity price risk rhrough investing surplus funds on liquid mutual funds for short term

basis.

The lable below summadses the impact of increase/decrease ofthe Net Asset Value (NAV) on the profit for the year. The analysis is based on

the assumption that the NAV price would increase 57o and decrease by 5% with all variable constant.

Itrcrease/
Change in rate (decrerse) in

profit

3l March 2023

3l Nlarch 2022

0l April 2021

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company's

exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets lik€ security deposits, loans and bank deposits are mostly with employees, govemment bodies and banks and hence, the

Company do€s not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets

With respect to trade receivableV unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted teams to review the receivables on periodic basis and to take

nec€ssary mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss

(EcL).

iii. Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is g€nerated from operations. The Company

believes that the cash and cash equivalents is sufficient to meet its cunent requirements. Accordingly no Iiquidity risk is perceived.

The break-up ofcash and cash equivalents, deposits and investmenls is as below.
3l March 2023 3l March 2022 0l April202l

+5Yo

-5%
+50/.

-5Yo

+50/.

-50/o

0.30
(0.30)

0.19
(0.1e)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Investments

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are based on

contractual undiscounted payments

Maturitv period 3l March 2023 3l Mareh 2022 0l April 2021

t2t.46
2.39

83.01 58.27

5.37

878.3 t

Finsncirl liabilities - current
Bonowings (cunent)

Lease liabilities

Tradc payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year

Betweenl-3years
Between I - l0year
Betweenl-3years

t55.27

124.58

90.19

76.44

253.67

50.54

0.05 12.95

|,023.84

22.00

I 1.87

I,388.55
Finalcial liabilities - Ilon current

Bonowings

Lease liabilities
Other fi nancial liabilities

r,909.00



Casr Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limitcd
Notes to Financi8l Ststemelts for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless othervise stated)

33. First time adoption
As stated in Note I & 2, the Company has prepared its first financials statements in accordance with Ind AS. For the purposes oftransition

fiom previous GAAP to Ind AS, the Company has followed th€ guidance prescribed in tnd AS l0l - First Time adoption of Indian

Accounting Standards ("lnd AS 1Ol"), with effect from I April, 2021 ("transition date"). For the year ended 3l March 2022, the Company

had prepared its financials stalements in accordance with Company's (Accounts) Rules 2014, notified under section 133 ofthe Act and other

relevant provisions ofthe Act ("previous GAAP" or "lndian GAAP").

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023 including

the comparative information the year ended 3l March 2022,and I April 2021.

ln preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at I April 2021 and in presenting tlre compamtive information for the years ended 3l March 2022

and 3l March 2023, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with previous

GAAp. This note explains the principal adjustmenls made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with

previous GAAP, and how the transition fiom previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position and financial

performance. There were no significant reconciling items between cash flows prepared under Ind AS other than those arising due to

reclassification ofthe previous year figures to conform to the current yearrs presentation.

Optiotrrl cxemptions availed and mandrtory exceptiotrs
In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Compaly has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions.

A. Optiotral exemptions availed
(i) . Property, plant and equipmetrt and irtangible sssets

Ind AS l0l permits a first-time adopt€r to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised

in the financial stalements as at the date oftransition to lnd AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the

date oftransition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabiliti€s. This exemption can also be used for intangible assels

covered by lnd AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties. Accordingly, the Company has

elected to measure all ofits property, plant and equipment, inlangible ass€ts and investment propeny at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

(ii). ttrvestments ir subsidirries, joitrt ventures and associates

Ind AS 27 requires investments in subsidiaries, associates andjoint ventures to be recorded at cost or in accordance with tnd AS 109 in its

separate financial statements. However, Ind AS lol provides an option to measure that investment at one ofthe following amounts in case

the Company decides to measure such investment al cost:

i. Cost as per Ind AS 27 or
ii. Deemed cost, which is:

a. Fair value at the entity's date oftransition to Ind AS

b. Previous GAAP carrying amount at that date

The Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures using deemed cost at the Prcvious GAAP

carrying amount at the date oftransition to Ind AS.

(iii). Share besed peyments

lnd AS l0l provides an option to not apply Ind AS 102 to liabilities arising from share-based payment transactions that were settled before

the date oftransition to Ind AS. The Company has elected to avail this exemption and apply the requirements oflnd AS 102 to all such gants

under the ESOP plan, which are not settled as at the date oftransition to Ind AS.

(iv), Revenue from contrscts wilh customcrs

lnd AS l0l provides following practical expedients when applying tnd AS I l5 retrospectively:

(a) for completed contracts, an entity need not restate contracts that begin and end within the same annual reporting period;

(b) for completed contracts that have yariable consideration, an entity may use the transaction price at the date the contract was completed

rather than estimating variable consideration amounts in the comparative reporting periods; and

(c) for all reporting periods presented before the beginning ofthe first lnd AS reporting period, an entity need not disclose the amount oflhe

transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations and an explanation of when the entity expects to recognise that amount

as reYenue.

(v). Busitress combitrstions

Ind AS lOl provides the option to apply Ind AS l03 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date'

The Company has elected to appty Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Use of this

exemption means that business combinations occuning prior to the transition date have not been restatcd and the IGAAP carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised under lnd AS, is their deemed cost at the date ofthe acquisition' Aftcr the date ofthe

acquisition, measurement is in accordance with respective Ind AS'
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(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless othervise stated)

B. Mandrtory exemptioDs availed

Ind AS l0l also allows first-time adopters can claim mandatory exceptions to be applied for retrospective applicalion ofcertain requirements

under [nd AS for transition fiom the previous GAAP:

(i) Estimstes
As per Ind AS I O I , an entity's estimates in aacordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made

for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is

objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting

policies.
As per Ind AS lol, where application oflnd AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under previous GAAP,

those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that exisled at the date oftransition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at

the end ofthe comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).

Ind AS estimated as at 0l April 2021 are consistent \ /ith the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The

Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous

GAAP:

-Fair valuation offinancial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income,

-lmpairment of'financial assets based on expecled credit loss model,

-Determination ofthe discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost, and

Upon the assessment ofthe estimate made under previous GAAP, the Company has concluded that there was no necessity to revise such

estimates under Ind AS, other than those which are required due to application oflnd AS.

(ii) Derecogoitior offin&trci8l sssets and liabilities:
As per lnd AS l0l an entity should apply the recognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively for transaction

occurring after the date of transition to Ind AS However an entity may apply the derecognition requirements retrospectively from a date

chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a result of past

transaction were obtained at the time ofinitially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has chosen to avail the exception to apply the derecognition provision oflnd AS l0l prospectively from the date oftransition.

(iii) Classification atrd mcesurement of financial assets:

Ind AS l0l requires an entity to classiry and measure its financial assets into amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss or fair value

through other comprehensive income based on the business model assessment and solely payment ofprincipal and interest ("SPPI") criterion

based on facts and circumstances that exist at the date oftransition. Fuiher, the standard permits measurement offinancial assets accounted

at amortised cost based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date oftransition ifretrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of
lransition. Measurement ofthe financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively,

The following reconciliations provides the eflect oftransition to Ind AS from previous GAAP in accordance with Ind AS l0l :

l. Total equity as at I April 2021 ar.d3l March2022
2. Total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended 3l M^rch2022

C. Reconciliation ofequity as previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS
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R.coociliation ofcquity ri pr.viously report.d undcr Previout GAAP to Ind AS

l). Totrl equity rs st 3l Mrrch 2022 and I April 2021

Particulars
Notes

As at
3l March 2022

As at
01 April 2021

Equity rs reportcd under previous GAAP
Ind AS rdjustmcnts
Fair value adjustments:

Effect ofrevenue recognition as per IND AS I l5
Cost adjustment as per IND AS I l5
Defened tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments

Gratuity Impact

Borrowings Impact

IND AS I I6 - Impact

Mutual funds impact

Totel edjustments
Total Equity under Ind AS

(D
(D

(vii)
(viii)
(i,
(iv)

549.7 5

(2,97 4.64)
2,226.7E

187.62

2.39

122.26

(8s6.12)

672.70

42.36

15.12

(ss7.8s) (r2s.e1)
(8.10) __lJ.69r

2). Totrl comprehensiye income reconciliation for the year end€d 31 Nlarch 2022

Particulars
Notes

As at
31March2022

Profit rfter trx !s per previous GAAP

lnd AS sdjustments
lndAs I l5- Revenue recognition

IND AS I l5- Cost adjustment

Remeasurcment of employee benefit obligation

Borrowings Impact

Defered tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments

CWIP Impact

IND AS I 16 - Impact

Total sdjustmcnts
Net Prolit sfter tax as per Ind AS
Other comprehensive income (net oftax)
Total comprehensive itrcome 8s p€r lnd AS

(r,
(D

(viii)
(iD

(vii)
(D

(iv)

427.49

(2,118.s2)

1,554.0E

(12.?3)

145.26

(431.91)

(4.42)

_______J!.42L
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D. Notes to Itrd AS trrnsition

(i). Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from real estate development is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer. The

performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and lransfer of conrol ofthe asset to the

customer. Under previous GAAP Revenue is recognised as per the Revised Cuidance Note issued by lnstitute ofChanered Accountants of lndia on

" Accounting for Real estate transactions (Revised 2012)". As per which revenue is recognised under the percentage ofcompletion method.

(ii). Borrowitrgs
Under lnd AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deduct€d from the carrying amount ofborrowings on

initial recognition. These costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the finance cost by

applying thc effective interest method. Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to statement of profit and loss on straight-line

basis over the period of loan.

(iii). Property, plsDt 8trd equipmcot

Under previous GAAP, (i) Land and (ii) Buildings are included as part of Propeny, plaot and equipment. In accordance with Ind AS these are

classified as investment properties. The management has deterrnined that the investment properties consist of two classes of assets (i) Land and (ii)
Buildings based on the nature, characteristics and risks ofeach property.

(iv), Lcrscs
Under the previous GAAP, lcss€e classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease transferred substantially all

risk and rewards incidental to the ownership ofan assel. Operating lease were expensed in the statement of profit and loss, Pursuant to application

of Ind AS - t 16, for operating leases other than those for which the Company has opted for short-term or low value exemption, the Company has

recorded a right-of-use assets. Right-of-use asset is amortised over the leasc term or useful life of the leased assets whichever is lower and lease

liabilities is subsequently measured at amortised cost and interest expense is recognized.

The Company has measured the right-of-use asset at the date of transition at its carrying atnount as if lnd AS - I 16 had been applied since the

commenc€ment date of the lease and the lease liability is measurcd at present value of the remaining lease payments since the date of
commencement.

(Y). lnvestments

The movement is relating to reclassification of investments in quoted mutual funds from Cash and Cash equivalents to Short term Investments and

the quoted investrnents (mutual funds) are valued using the quoted market prices in active markets. Under previous GAAP these were valued at

lower of cost and fair value.

(vi). Losns atrd other finaDcisl assets

The movement in other financial assets is arising mainly on account of reclassification of security deposit from non-cunent to ROU assets as per

INDAS l'16. Under preyious GAAP these were accounted at cost.

(Yii). Deferred tares

Indian GAAp requires defened tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and

accounting profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred t&\cs using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on

temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its t&x base. The application of Ind-AS 12

appioactr has resulted in recognition of defened tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP. In addition' the

various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences.

(yiii). Remeasurement ofpost employce benefits expcnsc

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan asset, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense

on the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these

remeasurements were forming part ofthe profit or loss for the year,
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34. Relatcd party lransactions

i. Nam€s of r€lated rties and nature of relationsh
Name ofthe rclated P{rty Naturc ofR€lationshi

Casagmnd Premier Builder Privare Limited (Formerly knoun as Casagrand Builder Privare Limited)

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Privale Limited

Casa Grande Grace Privare Limited

casa Interior studio Private Limited (Till 3ll01/2022)
Casa Crande Propcarc Private Limited (Till 3ll01/2022)
Casagrand Staylogy Privare Limitcd
Casa Grandc Homes Prh,ate Limited

Casagrand Horizons Privale Limited

Gaz,y Mag Privale Limited
Casagrand Magick Rury Privare Limitcd
Casa Crande I'liles'tone Private Lillitcd
Casa Graode Zest Privare Limited

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grandc Gardeu City Builders Private Limited

Casacrarde Vistaaz Private Limited

Casa Gmnde Coimbatore LLP
Casa Gra.de Enterpris€s LLP
Casa Grande Sheher LLP

Casa Grand€ Vallam LLP
Crace Gated Cornmunity LLP
Danub Homes Privale Limited

Dawniog DeveloSrrs LLP
Casa Grande Realton LLP
Sky Magna LLP (Till FY 2020-21)

Casagand Aesthetic Private Limited

Casagrand Regale Privale I-imited

Casagrand Dresm Home Private Limited/ Casagrand Bizpa* Private Limited ( I 0.0 I .2022)

Casagrand Spaceintell Private Lirnited

Upstay Builder Pivare Limited (from 2Zl012021)
Casagrand Zingo Privarc Limited (from 28/ I 0202 I )
Casagrand Exotia Privare Limited (from l0llll202l)
Casagrand Hyderwise Private Limited (from 3 I / I 2/202 I )
Casa$and Everta Private Limited (from l0llll202l\
Casagrand Vivacity Privale Limited (from 3/l l/2021)

Casagrand vivaac€ Private Limited (ftom 07/1212021)

Casagrand Fresh Private Limited (from l4l04n02l\
SHV LPG India Private Limited / Casagand Magnum Privatc Limited (wef22-02-2022)

Casagrand Anchor Privale Limited (fiom 261 102021)

Casagand StageT Privale Lirtiten $toll.t 29/04n022)
Casagrand Perch Builder Private Limited (from 06105/2022)

Casagrand Beacon Private Lill],ited (fiooi 2510612022)

Casagrand Lotus Private Limited (from 16/06/2022)

Casagland Blue Horizoi Prilate Limited (from 0610712022)

Exotia Builder Private Lnnited (ftoll.l, 07 107 12022)

Flock Builder Privale L imited, (from 07 /01 D022)

Casagrand Fittedhomes Privat€ Limited (fiom l9/0 n022)

Casagrand Alphine Privare Ltnitd (ftom 22107 D022\

Casagrurd Millenia Private Limited (from 20103/2023)

Casagrard Astute Priv de Ltnited (from 22107 12022)

Arun Mn
Gautam ASarwaal

Dorothy Thomas

Holding Company

l'ellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fcllow Subsidiarics

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidia es

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fcllow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fcllow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiarics

Fellow Subsidiaics
Fcllow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiades

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fcllow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fcllow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidia es

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key management personnel

Key management persoonel

Key management personnel ol
parent e tity
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Nsme of the related Part! Nature of Rel.tionship
Blitzkrieg Technologr Private Limited
Propel Holdings LLP
I.is Dcvelopment LLP
Blue Sea Homes Search LLP
t,KR Agency Privare Limited (Till FY 2020-21)

Gallante Promoter LLP
Nobilitas Home Search LLP

Sea View Homes Search LLP
Solac€ Gated Community LLP
Venerate Homes Search LLP

Zest Homes S6rch LLP
Casagrand Suprerne Home Ll-P
AAK Realty Service LLP
Anln Hope Foundation

Casagrand Millenia Privare Limited

Casagrand Brightkids Private Limiled
Syona Cosmetics P vare l-imited

Chengalpattu Warchousing Parks Private Limited
Thtrksai Softwarc Private Limited (Till FY 2021-22)

Arun Farnily Trusteeship LLP
Casagrand Arun MN Academy Foundation

Casa Ilrterior Studio Private Limited (From 0l/022022)
Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited (From 0llo2Do22)
Casagand Starya* Privatc Limited

Casagrand Luxor Privale Limited

Chengslpathr Logistics Pa*s Privare Limited

Erfities in which kcy
managemcnl perconnel cxcrcis€

signiticant influenca

Note : Related pary relalionships are as identified by the management.

ii. Transrclions wilh the rclated parties

l'nrticulars

a) AdvcrliJcmentExpenies

Casa Crande Enterprisos LLP 16.62 16.78

3l luarch 202f, 3l }tarch 2022
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Psrticuhrs 3l March 2023 3l Mrrch 2022

b) I[tcrcst lncornc

Casa GEnde Civil Engineering Privare Limited

Casagrand Magick Rury Privale Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Private

Limited)

Aak Realty Scrvices LLP

Casa Grand€ Axiom Private Limited

Casr Grande Carden City Builders Ptivate Limited

Casa GIa de Homes Privare l-imited

Casa Grande Mileslone Privale Limited

Casa Gratde Realtors LLP

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Zest Privare Limited

Casagrand Aesthetic Privare Limiled

Casagrand Horizons Privalc Limited

Casagrand Perch Builder Privatc Limited

Casagrand Vivaac.e Private Limited

Danub Homes Privale Limited

Grace Gated Community LLP

Casagrand Millcnia Private Limitcd (from 201032023)

Casagrdnd Hyderwis€ Private Limited (from 3ll12l2021)

Casa Gmnde Sheltq LLP

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

6.90

3.56

108.79

0.55

8.69

24.87

6.9't

6.96

0.04

0.02

0.39

0.62

0.21

0.01

1.95

7.51

0.18

J.OJ

0.01

0.02

19.86

2.44

0.06

145.27

c) Construction cost

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limit€d 0.08

d) ReimbursementofExp€nses

Casagrand Premier Build€r Private Limited (Iormcrly known as Casagrand Builder Private
1E5.09

Limited)

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casa Crarde Axiom Private Limited

Casagrand Arun Mn Academy Foundation

46.89

e) Facility & NtanigemeDt Expenses

Casa Grande PropcaJe Private l-imited 7.08

0.04

15.00

8.40

264.67

20.74

3.48



Particulars ll luarch 2023 3l ltarch 2022

f) Intcrcsa ExpcDsct

Ctrsa Grande Grace Private Limited

CasaSrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Homes Private Limitcd

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Dawning Developers LLP

Gazy Mag Privare Limited

g) Advancer given (A$ct)

Casagrand Prernier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as CasaSra.nd Builder Private

Limited)

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grand€ Propcarc Privatc Limited

Da$ning Developers LLP

Casa Grande Grac€ Privote Limited

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casagand Millenia Privale Limited

Casagrald Vistaaz Private Limited

AAK Realty Services LLP

Gazy Mag Private Limitcd

h) Advanccs trkeo (Liability)

Danub Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limiled

Cass Grande Realtors LLP

Casa Gra[de Axiom Private Limited

Casa Crande Homes Privare Limited

Casa Grande Milestone Privale Limited

Da\ning Developers LLP

Gazy Mag Privale Limited

Grac.€ Cated Community LI-P

Casa Grande Zest Privare Limited

Casagrand Magick Rury Privale Limited

Casa Grande Garden City Buildcrs Privatc Limited

Casagrand Acsthetic Private Limited

Casagrand Millenia Privatc Limited

Casagnnd Horizons Private Limitcd

Casa$and VivaacE Privale Limited

0.32

0.43

0.14

0.08

0.01

0.15

0.01

664.01

96.18

438.22

67.50

7 .43

1.76

0.60

0.05

0.26

8.38

0.29

0.1I

3.80

12.77

0.28

4.73

2.17

5.15

0.67

0.28

2.60

19.41

0.27

1.69

0.09

1.52

0.40

t .99

0.03

0.10

0.05

0.10

0.21

0.63

Casa Grinde Smrrt Valuc Homes Private Limitcd
Notes to Finsncial Statement! for the yerr erd€d 3l Nlrrch 2023
(All anounts ate in Millions, unlest olherwise stated)

4.80

0.67

0.10

0.04

0.25
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(All amounls ate in Millions, unless olherwise staled)

iii. Brlanc..r outstrndiog at th. cnd ofthe yerr

Particul.rs 3l Nlrrch 2023 3l March 2022

r) Intcrcst r.c.ivabl.
Casagrand Prernier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagand Builder Private

Limited)

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Privare Limited

Casagrand Magick Rufy P.ivate Limited

AAK Realty Servicr! LLP

Casa Grande Axiom Privare Limited

Casa Grande Garden City Builders Pri! ale Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private l,imited

Casa Crande Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande lr{ilestone Private Limited

Casa crande Realtors LLP

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Z€st Private Limited

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casagrand Hydenvise Privale Limitcd

Casagmnd Aesthetic Privale Limited

Casagrand Horizons Privale Limited

Casagraod Millenia Private Limited

Casagrand vivaa.e Privale Limited

Danu5 iJomes P vate Limited

b) Intcrest Pryablc

Casagrand Vistaaz Privale Limited

Dawning Develop€rs LLP

Crac€ Gated Corurunity LLP

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Grande Axiom Privatc Limited

Casa Grande tlonnes Private Limited

c) Short-lerm loaor ard .dvrr.cls

Casagrand Premier Buildcr Privare l-inlited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Private

Limit€d)

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Linrited

Casa Grande Coimbarore I-LP

Grsce Gated Coomunity LLP

Dawning Devclopers LLP

Casagrantl Magick Rufy P vate Limitcd

Casa Grande Grr(r Private l.irnited

Casa Grande Rcaftors LLP

Casagnnd Millenia Private Limited

AAK Realty Scrvic€s LLP

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Casagrdrd Vistaaz Privale Limited

256.23

I.r9
I .68

0.3 r

1.98

5.46

6.7 6

1.92

t.57

0.01

0.01

0.10

0.02

0.01

o.34

0.12

t.77

0.43

3.27

0.33

0.01

1.76

t,337 .92
13.70

0.s0

147.44

3.45

0.06

0.5 8

0.58

52.56

0.14

0.08

858.41
7.89

0.50

0.49

0.05

0.66

0.26

0.25

0.040.20
0.53

0. t4
0.14
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Prrticulars 3l llarch 202J 3l Nlarch 2022

d) Sher. capital
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Builder Private

Limited)

c) Tradc Pryabl.!
Casa Grande Enterprises LLP

Casa Grande Propcarc P.ivate Limited

0 Short-termborrowings

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casagrande Vistazz Private Limited

Danub Homes Privale Limited

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Cazy Mag Private Limited

35. Commitments and contingencies

(e) Commitments

Estimated amounts of contracts rcmaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

(i) Capital expenditure commitments: (3 t March 2023 - Nil ; 3l March 2022 - Nil)

(b) Contingent liability

(i) Company doesn't have any contingent liability.

5.7 5

0.73

39.65

0.93

0. t0 0.10

0.02

0.25

7 .40

0.45

1.83

2.80

0.r0
0.10

0.01

0.04
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Notes to Financial Strtem€nts for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in llillions, unless otherwisc stqted)

37. Ratio analysis and its elemenas

Ratio Numerator
As at 3l

March 2023

As at 3l
March 2022

Variance (7") Reason for
change

2023 vs 2022

Current ratio

Debt- Equity Ratio

Debt Service

Coverage ratio

Retum on Equity

ratio

lnYentory TumoYer
ratio

Trade Receivable

Tunrover Ratio

Net Capital

Tumover Ratio

Net Profit ratio

Retum on Capital

Employed

Retum on

lnvestment

Current Assets

Total Debt

Net Profits after taxes -
Preference Dividend

Cost ofgoods sold

Net credit sales = Cross

credit sales - sales retum

Net credit purchases :
Gross credit purclmses -
purchase retum

Net sales = Total sales -

sales retum

Net Profit

Eamings before interest

and taxes

Interest (Finance

Income)

Current Liabilities

Sharcholder's Equity

Debt service = Interest

& Lease Payments +

Principal Rcpayments

Average Shareholder's
Equity

AYerage lnventory

Average Trade

Receivable

Average Trade Payables

Working capital =

Cunent assets - Current

liabilities

Capital Employed =

Tangible Net Worlh +

Total Debt + Defened

Tax Liability

I .17

-212

0.45

0.26

2.65

0.03

0.01

NA

8.5

- t28

0.01

0.7 5

0.17

-0.35

NA

-86.24%

6s.63%

4400.00%

-128.00%

NA

52.94%

t3.73%

NA

-lL4.29%

-66.67%

( )

( ii)

( llt )

I )

( )

(vi)

(vi;)

36. Segment rcportirg

The Group is into the business ofreal estate development hence segment reporting as per Ind AS 108 is not applicable

Denominator

2023 vs 2022

Trade Payable

Tumover Ratio

Eamings for debt

sewice = Net profit
after tanes + Finance

Cost + Non-cash

operating expenses

Net sales = Total sales '

sales retum

Investment

-0.21

0.05

0.03

NA



Casa Grande Smart Vrlue Homes Private Limited

Not€s to Financial Stltem€nts for the ycar ended 3l March 2023
(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless olhenvise slqted)

Explanrtion for Vsriance in ratios by more than 25%o

l. March 2023 vs Mrrch 2022

i) Decrease in Cunent ratio is due to increase in other current liabilities

ii) Increase in Debt- Equity Ratio is due to increase in Tolal Debt

iii) Increase in Debt Sewice Coverage ratio is due to higher profit during the year

iv) Decrease in Retum on Equity ratio is due to profit during the year on closing balance ofequity.

v) lncrease in Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio is due to increase in sales during the year

vi) Decrease in Net Profit ratio is due to current year Profit

vii) Decrease in Retum on Capital Enrployed is due to decrease in Eamings before interest and taxes

38. Other statutory information

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Group for holding any

Benami property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction rvhich is yet to be rcgistered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto cunency or Virtual Cunency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities

(lntermediaries) with the understandirg that the lntermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofThe Group

(UltimateBeneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that The Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, secu ty or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is nol recorded in the books ofaccounts that has been surrendercd or disclose<i as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, l96l (such as, search or survcy or any other relevant provisions

ofthe Income Tari Act, l96l

39. Expenditure in foreign currency

The company has not made any expenditure in foreign cunency



Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Notes to Financial Ststements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(Ail amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

40. Code on Socisl Security

The Code on Social Security,2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and posremployment benefits received

Presidential assent in September 2020. T\e Code has been published in the Gazene of lndia. However, the date on which the Code will
come into effect has not been notified and the frnal rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

As per our report ofeven date
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